


Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 13, 2019 

Page 2 of 4  

5 PUBLIC HEARING

5A.  Public Hearing on Mitigation Impact Fees ï Annual Report  (Pages 5-10)  

Staff Presentation: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Recommendation: Conduct a Public Hearing, review annual report, consider public and 

staff comments, accept report and adopt Resolution __-2019 accepting and approving the 

Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and making findings pursuant to Colfax Municipal 

Code Chapter 3.56 and the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code Section 6600 Et Seq)  

6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 

discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an 

item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

Recommended Action:  Approve Consent Calendar 

6A. 

6B. 

6C. 

6D. 

6E. 

6F. 

Minutes ï Regular Meeting of September 25, 2019   (Pages 11-21) 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 25, 2019. 

Cash Summary Report ï September 2019   (Pages 22-33) 

Recommendation: Accept and file. 

Quarterly Investment Report ï Quarter Ended September 30, 2019   (Pages 34-38) 

Recommendation: Accept and file. 

Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance   (Pages 39-47) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2019 approving the Department of Forestry and Fire 

Protection Agreement required by CalFIRE as a condition to receiving grant funds in the 

amount of $2,300 for the grant application for the 2019/20 Fiscal Year. 

Adopt Caltransô Local Assistance Procedures Manual Chapter 10   (Pages 48-50) 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider Resolution __-2019 authorizing the adoption of 

Caltransô Local Assistance Procedures Manual Chapter 10. 

Culver Street Phase II ï Design and Project Management   (Pages 51-56) 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with GHD Engineering for the design and project management of Culver Street 
Phase II in an amount not to exceed $30,272. 

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action

Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent council 

agenda and posting of that agenda will serve as notice 



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 13, 2019 

Page 3 of 4  

6G. Adopt a Policy for Annual Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem   (Pages 57-61) 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider Resolution __-2019 approving adopting a policy for 

annual selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to 

exceed three (3) minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is 

required it will be referred to staff.

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed 

at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member 

of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a 

future Council meeting agenda. 

8A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ï All Councilmembers 

8B. City Operations Update ï City Manager 

9 COUNCIL BUSINESS

9A. 

9B. 

9C. 

9D. 

9E. 

9F. 

The City Council of the City of Colfax Denying the Colfax Net Setback Variance 

Application   (Pages 62-65) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2019 approving the City Councilôs findings and order 

denying the Colfax Net setback variance application. 

Proposed Location for the Colfax Skate Park   (Pages 66-77) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution __-2019 approving locating the Colfax Skate Park 

adjacent to the Splash Park. 

PG&E Loss Memorandum   (Pages 78-84) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Discuss and provide staff direction on the PG&E Loss Memorandum. 

City Council Regular Session Meeting Time Change   (Pages 85-86) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Recommendation: Provide staff direction as to future meeting times. 

Commercial Cannabis Microbusiness   (Pages 87-89) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager & Alfred ñMickò Cabral, City Attorney  

Recommendation: Discuss whether to expand the scope of permissible commercial cannabis 

activities in Colfax and Provide direction to staff. 

City Funding Support for Winterfest Event   (Pages 90-91) 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution __-2019 authorizing a $1000 
donation to the Colfax Chamber of Commerce, coordinators of the 2019 Winterfest event, as 
the Cityôs contribution to the success of the Winterfest 2019 event. 







 

City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report November 13, 2019 Mitigation Impact Fees ɀ Annual Report 
 

 

These funds earn and accumulate interest and all expenditures from these funds have been for the 

purpose for which the fees were collected.   A detailed financial analysis by fund and a schedule of 

mitigation fees are attached as part of this report. 

 

Mitigation Fees are accounted for using the accounting method known as FIFO (first in, first out), 

which means the first revenue received is assumed to be the first spent.  State law and the Colfax 

Municipal Code require the City to prepare an annual report for each fund established to account for 

Mitigation Impact Fees.  The report must include (1) A brief description of the type of fee in the 

account or fund (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(A)) , (2)  the amount of the fee (Government Code 

§66006(b)(1)(B)),  (3) the beginning and ending balance of the account or fund (Government Code 

§66006(b)(1)(C)), (4) the amount of the fees collected and the interest earned (Government Code 

§66006(b)(1)(D)), (5)  an identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and 

the amount of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage of the cost of the 

public improvement that was funded with the fees (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(E)), (6) an 

identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public improvement will 

commence if the city determines that sufficient funds have been collected to complete financing on an 

incomplete public improvement (Government Code §66006(b)(1)(F)), (7) a description of each inter-

fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, including the public improvement on which the 

transferred or loaned fees will be expended, and, in the case of an inter-fund loan, the date on which 

the loan will be repaid, and the rate of interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan 

(Government Code §66006(b)(1)(G)) and (8) the amount of refunds made and allocations made if the 

cost of making a refund exceeds the amount to be refunded. 

 

Public Contact 

This report was available at City Hall counter by:  October 2, 2019 

Notice of Public Hearing was published: Auburn Journal October 30, 2019 

 

Conclusion:  

 

Staff recommends that Council reviews and accepts report. 

 

 
Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. Annual AB1600 Report 

3. Mitigation Fee Schedule 

 

The 2006 Mitigation Fee Study and 2006 Mitigation Fee Council Minutes are available at City Hall. 

Item 5A



















6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

6A. Minutes ɀ Regular Meeting of September 11, 2019 

 Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 11, 2019. 
 

6B. Cash Summary Report ɀ August 2019 

 Recommendation: Accept and file. 
 

6C. Award of Contract ɀ Wastewater Treatment Plant Fencing 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 43-2019 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

with STA-BULL Fence Company Inc. in an amount not to exceed $33,189. 
 

By MOTION, approve the consent calendar as presented. 

The MOTION was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and seconded by Councilmember Burruss and 

approved by the following voice vote: 

 AYES: Fatula, Mendoza, Douglass, Burruss, Lomen 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 

7 PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Linda Habay, Business owner 

  Requested the city start planning for winter months. 
  

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza stated she reached out to CalTrans and reported they are working on 

getting porta-potties in Colfax and further up the hill. 

 

Mayor Fatula stated last year’s signs would be put out again. 

 

8 COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS 

 Councilmember Lomen 

Councilmember Lomen attended the Colfax Honor Game. He attended the WACMAC 

meeting. He also stated Placer County plans to revise rules at Sugar Pine which will 

become a no wake zone. Councilmember Lomen reports there will be public meetings 

in October to discuss short-term rentals, AirB&B type rentals. He stated Supervisor 

Gustafson will be at the library the second Tuesday of every month. Reported the 

County is trying to update housing codes to reflect state changes in requirements.  
 

 Councilmember Douglass 

Councilmember Douglass stated Channel 13 advertised Railroad Days, reported Placer 

County economic development meeting on mixed housing, SACOG discussed housing 

plan from Washington, Middle Housing and reported Project GO funding to food 

closets. Councilmember Douglass attended Railroad Days, the Flea Market and the 

Chamber Mixer, stated Pioneer Energy rate change vote is going to happen Monday. He 

talked about the success of Railroad Days. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza attended coffee with Supervisor Gustafson and stated she 

talked about wildfire safety and ways to prepare the Interstate 80 corridor. She 









Bill Bean Sr. (resident) spoke in support of the pool coming back. He talked about the 

enjoyment of the pool in that location previously, stated a skate park does not belong there 

and how building a pool at the high school is an extensive process. 
 

 Councilmember Burruss requested clarification on the structural integrity of the site to hold a pool. 
 

  City Manager Heathcock was unable to clarify. 
 

 Councilmember Burruss inquired on a setback requirement for the skate park. 
 

City Manager Heathcock and City Planner Feagans stated they were not aware of a setback 

requirement for a skate park. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked about phase 1 and phase 2 of the pool, stated she is in support of 

the Skate Park but would like more information on the grant funding. 
 

Mayor Fatula inquired about the long-term maintenance cost for a skate park and cost of security, 

inquired about the previous grant and noticing neighbors within 300-feet. 
 

Councilmember Lomen requested a comparison of a skate park vs. a pool, suggested obtaining the 

information from another municipality. 
 

 All Council Members spoke in favor of a skate park in Colfax. 
 

Councilmember Burruss stated she would like more information on the project and funding going 

forward. She clarified that approving this resolution would allow review of the site for issues but 

does not lock in the site, stated the first step is a long process. 
 

Mayor Fatula requested this item be pushed to allow more research. He requested a motion in favor 

and a motion to obtain more information. 
 

By MOTION, approve a skate park to be located on City property. 

The MOTION was made by Councilmember Lomen, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza and 

approved by the following voice vote: 

 AYES:  Fatula, Mendoza, Douglass, Burruss, Lomen 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 
 

 Council voted unanimously in support of a skate park being located on City property.  

 

By MOTION, defer the item to the next meeting. 

The MOTION was made by Mayor Fatula, seconded by Councilmember Douglass and passed 

by the following voice vote: 

AYES:  Fatula, Mendoza, Douglass 

 NOES:  Burruss 

 OBSTAIN: Lomen 

 ABSENT: 
 









2 City of Colfax 
Staff Report  2019 Cash Summary Report ɀ September 2019 

Partner agreements.  The City has received all Developer share of costs, and $270,000 of 

these funds are in Fund 210 – Mitigation Fees Road projects and are budgeted to be used 

for the project (to be transferred as necessary at project completion). 

Attachments 
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance

b. Expenses by Month

c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports

a. Cash Summary

b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund

c. Check Register Report - Accounts Payable

d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)



*This is a recommended General Fund Reserve Target of 25% (3 months) of annual General Fund Revenues. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that
general purpose governments establish unrestricted fund balance goals to be no less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or regular expenditures.

Prev Yr Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Cash Balance FY2019 20 $2,013 $2,069 $2,169 $2,110
Cash Balance FY2018 19 $1,275 $1,398 $1,444 $1,447 $1,329 $1,420 $1,336 $1,672 $1,812 $1,760 $1,893 $2,151 $2,013
Cash Balance FY2017 18 $1,086 $1,050 $828 $905 $954 $983 $962 $1,280 $1,212 $1,168 $1,250 $1,493 $1,396
Cash Balance FY2016 17 $838 $829 $750 $835 $897 $802 $889 $1,133 $981 $1,022 $938 $1,034 $1,086
Cash Balance FY2015 16 $768 $670 $666 $562 $561 $601 $466 $717 $647 $569 $605 $831 $838
Cash Balance FY2014 15 $240 $181 $217 $167 $209 $284 $253 $528 $491 $489 $385 $691 $773
Cash Balance FY2013 14 $15 $(57) $(20) $45 $(55) $(34) $36 $233 $134 $69 $79 $225 $240
Cash Balance FY2012 13 $(287) $(286) $(314) $(438) $(383) $(391) $(380) $(221) $(173) $(144) $(212) $37 $15
*Reserves (Ops, Cap, Pen) $645 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695
Budget FY2018 19 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013

$(500)

$

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

City of Colfax π September 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 2019π20 >>

Attachment 1a



$

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

City of Colfax π September 2019
General Fund Reserved Cash π Expenses by Month

(Dollars in Thousands)

General Expenses Sheriff/Fire Animal Control Contract

Insurance Deposit to SCORE Risk Pool Audit, Grants, HR Consult Capital Outlay/Repairs

Legal Expenses









29





31









2 City of Colfax 
Staff Report  2019 Quarterly Investment Report 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting 

requirements.  Additionally, we have determined: 

¶ The investments held at September 30, 2019 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by

Resolution 29-2014.

¶ The composite yield of the City’s investment pool (US Bank and LAIF) to be the rate of 2.24%

for the quarter ended September 30, 2019.

¶ There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period

October 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020.

Historically, due to fluctuations in fund balances, investment opportunities outside the corporate 

checking and LAIF accounts have been somewhat limited.  With several years of solid funding levels, 

the City staff has reviewed additional investment opportunities.  We have seriously considered the 

process of opening an account for some short term Certificates of Deposit (CD) investments. In recent 

months, the rates for CD’s have dropped while LAIF interest rates continue to increase creating a very 

narrow gap between the two investment options.  Staff will continue to review for opportunities, but at 

this time will continue with the current investment structure.  

Attachments 
1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool

2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 09/30/2019)

3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

Item 6C







Home ->> PMIA ->> PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1977 5.770 5.660 5.660 5.650 5.760 5.850 5.930 6.050 6.090 6.090 6.610 6.730

1978 6.920 7.050 7.140 7.270 7.386 7.569 7.652 7.821 7.871 8.110 8.286 8.769

1979 8.777 8.904 8.820 9.082 9.046 9.224 9.202 9.528 9.259 9.814 10.223 10.218

1980 10.980 11.251 11.490 11.480 12.017 11.798 10.206 9.870 9.945 10.056 10.426 10.961

1981 10.987 11.686 11.130 11.475 12.179 11.442 12.346 12.844 12.059 12.397 11.887 11.484

1982 11.683 12.044 11.835 11.773 12.270 11.994 12.235 11.909 11.151 11.111 10.704 10.401

1983 10.251 9.887 9.688 9.868 9.527 9.600 9.879 10.076 10.202 10.182 10.164 10.227

1984 10.312 10.280 10.382 10.594 10.843 11.119 11.355 11.557 11.597 11.681 11.474 11.024

1985 10.579 10.289 10.118 10.025 10.180 9.743 9.656 9.417 9.572 9.482 9.488 9.371

1986 9.252 9.090 8.958 8.621 8.369 8.225 8.141 7.844 7.512 7.586 7.432 7.439

1987 7.365 7.157 7.205 7.044 7.294 7.289 7.464 7.562 7.712 7.825 8.121 8.071

1988 8.078 8.050 7.945 7.940 7.815 7.929 8.089 8.245 8.341 8.397 8.467 8.563

1989 8.698 8.770 8.870 8.992 9.227 9.204 9.056 8.833 8.801 8.771 8.685 8.645

1990 8.571 8.538 8.506 8.497 8.531 8.538 8.517 8.382 8.333 8.321 8.269 8.279

1991 8.164 8.002 7.775 7.666 7.374 7.169 7.098 7.072 6.859 6.719 6.591 6.318

1992 6.122 5.863 5.680 5.692 5.379 5.323 5.235 4.958 4.760 4.730 4.659 4.647

1993 4.678 4.649 4.624 4.605 4.427 4.554 4.438 4.472 4.430 4.380 4.365 4.384

1994 4.359 4.176 4.248 4.333 4.434 4.623 4.823 4.989 5.106 5.243 5.380 5.528

1995 5.612 5.779 5.934 5.960 6.008 5.997 5.972 5.910 5.832 5.784 5.805 5.748

1996 5.698 5.643 5.557 5.538 5.502 5.548 5.587 5.566 5.601 5.601 5.599 5.574

1997 5.583 5.575 5.580 5.612 5.634 5.667 5.679 5.690 5.707 5.705 5.715 5.744

1998 5.742 5.720 5.680 5.672 5.673 5.671 5.652 5.652 5.639 5.557 5.492 5.374

1999 5.265 5.210 5.136 5.119 5.086 5.095 5.178 5.225 5.274 5.391 5.484 5.639

2000 5.760 5.824 5.851 6.014 6.190 6.349 6.443 6.505 6.502 6.517 6.538 6.535

2001 6.372 6.169 5.976 5.760 5.328 4.958 4.635 4.502 4.288 3.785 3.526 3.261

2002 3.068 2.967 2.861 2.845 2.740 2.687 2.714 2.594 2.604 2.487 2.301 2.201

2003 2.103 1.945 1.904 1.858 1.769 1.697 1.653 1.632 1.635 1.596 1.572 1.545

2004 1.528 1.440 1.474 1.445 1.426 1.469 1.604 1.672 1.771 1.890 2.003 2.134

2005 2.264 2.368 2.542 2.724 2.856 2.967 3.083 3.179 3.324 3.458 3.636 3.808

2006 3.955 4.043 4.142 4.305 4.563 4.700 4.849 4.946 5.023 5.098 5.125 5.129

2007 5.156 5.181 5.214 5.222 5.248 5.250 5.255 5.253 5.231 5.137 4.962 4.801

2008 4.620 4.161 3.777 3.400 3.072 2.894 2.787 2.779 2.774 2.709 2.568 2.353

2009 2.046 1.869 1.822 1.607 1.530 1.377 1.035 0.925 0.750 0.646 0.611 0.569

2010 0.558 0.577 0.547 0.588 0.560 0.528 0.531 0.513 0.500 0.480 0.454 0.462

2011 0.538 0.512 0.500 0.588 0.413 0.448 0.381 0.408 0.378 0.385 0.401 0.382

2012 0.385 0.389 0.383 0.367 0.363 0.358 0.363 0.377 0.348 0.340 0.324 0.326

2013 0.300 0.286 0.285 0.264 0.245 0.244 0.267 0.271 0.257 0.266 0.263 0.264

2014 0.244 0.236 0.236 0.233 0.228 0.228 0.244 0.260 0.246 0.261 0.261 0.267

2015 0.262 0.266 0.278 0.283 0.290 0.299 0.320 0.330 0.337 0.357 0.374 0.400

2016 0.446 0.467 0.506 0.525 0.552 0.576 0.588 0.614 0.634 0.654 0.678 0.719

2017 0.751 0.777 0.821 0.884 0.925 0.978 1.051 1.084 1.111 1.143 1.172 1.239

2018 1.350 1.412 1.524 1.661 1.755 1.854 1.944 1.998 2.063 2.144 2.208 2.291

2019 2.355 2.392 2.436 2.445 2.449 2.428 2.379 2.341 2.280

Home  | Open Government  | Careers  | Contact

Home PMIA Home Contacts Time Deposits LAIF

Search

Attachment 3
Item 6C

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/public.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/careers/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/inside/directory.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/contact.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/timedeposits/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp


 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report November 13, 2019 Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance 
 

 

 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 13, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Brian Eagan, Battalion Chief 

Subject: Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: ã Un-funded: Amount:$2,300 Fund(s): 292 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 approving the Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection Agreement required by CalFIRE as a condition to receiving grant funds in the amount 
of $2,300 for the grant application for the 2019/20 Fiscal Year. 

 

Summary/Background: 

The Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) Grant Program provides funding to organize, train, and equip fire 

departments in rural areas and rural communities to prevent and suppress fires.  CalFIRE is responsible 

for administering these grant funds and has been authorized to make awards on a matching basis to public 

entities such as cities, counties, special districts and volunteer fire departments.   

 

The City received notification from the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection that the Colfax City 

Fire Department has been selected for funding in the amount of $2,300.  In order to receive the funding, 

Council must approve a resolution which is in the State format to accept the funds and memorialize the 

obligation to match funds.  Council approval and acceptance of the Grant Agreement package is due 

back to CalFIRE before December 2019. 

 

The City will purchase the items for the fire department beginning February 2020 and submit all invoices 

by June 30, 2020.  Reimbursement for grant funds (50% of expenditures) will be received up to eight 

weeks after invoices are submitted.   

 

Fiscal Impact:   

N/A 

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution__- 2019 

2. Contract 









7FG19014 

2 

VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Natural Resources Agency 

Agreement for the Volunteer Fire Assistance Program of the 
Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act of 1978 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into ON THE LAST SIGNATORY DATE ON PAGE 
6, by and between the STATE of California, acting through the Director of the Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection hereinafter called “STATE”, and ______________________________ 

______________________________hereinafter called “LOCAL AGENCY”, covenants as follows: 

RECITALS: 

1. STATE has been approved as an agent of the United States Department of Agriculture,
(USDA), Forest Service for the purpose of administering the Cooperative Forestry
Assistance Act (CFAA) of 1978 (PL 95-313, United States Code, Title 16, Chapter 41,
Section 2010 et seq., Volunteer Fire Assistance Program), hereinafter referred to as “VFA”,
and

2. The VFA has made funds available to STATE for redistribution, under certain terms and
conditions, to LOCAL AGENCY to assist LOCAL AGENCY to upgrade its fire protection
capability, and

3. LOCAL AGENCY desires to participate in said VFA.

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties as follows: 

4. APPROVAL: This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and
approved by the Department of General Services, if required.  LOCAL AGENCY
may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained.

5. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

6. FORFEITURE OF AWARD: LOCAL AGENCY must return this Agreement and
required resolution properly signed and executed to STATE at the address specified
in paragraph 11, with a postmark no later than December 1, 2019 or LOCAL
AGENCY will forfeit the funds.

7. GRANT AND BUDGET CONTIGENCY CLAUSE: It is mutually understood between the
parties that this Agreement may have been written for the mutual benefit of both parties
before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation of funds, to avoid
program and fiscal delays that would occur if the Agreement were executed after that
determination was made.



7FG19014 

3 
 

 
 
 
This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to the 
STATE by the United States Government for the State Fiscal Year 2019 for the purpose of 
this program.  In addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, 
limitations, or conditions enacted by the Congress or to any statute enacted by the Congress 
that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this Agreement in any manner. 

 
The parties mutually agree that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 
program, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 

 
The STATE has the option to invalidate the Agreement under the 30-day cancellation 
clause or to amend the Agreement to reflect any reduction in funds. 

 
8. REIMBURSEMENT: STATE will reimburse LOCAL AGENCY, from funds made 

available to STATE by the Federal Government, an amount not to exceed  on a 50/50 
matching funds basis, for the performance of specific projects and/or purchase of specific 
items identified in Proposed Project, Application for Funding, attached hereto.  
Reimbursement will be only for those projects accomplished and/or items purchased 
between THE LAST SIGNATORY DATE ON PAGE 1 and JUNE 30, 2020.  This sum 
is the sole and maximum payment that STATE will make pursuant to this Agreement.  
LOCAL AGENCY must bill STATE at the address specified in paragraph 11, with a 
postmark no later than September 1, 2020 in order to receive the funds.  The bill 
submitted by LOCAL AGENCY must clearly delineate the projects performed and/or items 
purchased.  A vendor’s invoice or proof of payment to vendor(s) must be included for items 
purchased. 

 
9. LIMITATIONS: Expenditure of the funds distributed by STATE herein is subject to the 

same limitations as placed by the VFA, upon expenditure of United States Government 
Funds.  Pursuant to Title 7 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Section 3016.32 subject to 
the obligations and conditions set forth in that section; title to any equipment and supplies 
acquired under this Agreement vests with the LOCAL AGENCY.  For any equipment 
items over $5,000, the federal government may retain a vested interested in accordance 
with paragraph 16 below. 

 
10. MATCHING FUNDS: Any and all funds paid to LOCAL AGENCY under the terms of 

this Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “VFA Funds”, shall be matched by LOCAL 
AGENCY on a dollar-for-dollar basis, for each project listed on attachment(s) hereto 
identified as “Proposed Project”.  No amount of unpaid “contributed” or “volunteer” labor 
or services shall be used or consigned in calculating the matching amount “actually spent” 
by LOCAL AGENCY. 
LOCAL AGENCY shall not use VFA Funds as matching funds for other federal grants, 
including Department of Interior (USDI) Rural Fire Assistance grants, nor use funds from 
other federal grants, including USDI Rural Fire Assistance grants, as matching funds for 
VFA Funds. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7FG19014 

4 
 

 
 
 
11. ADDRESSES: The mailing addresses of the parties hereto, for all notices, billings, 

payments, repayments, or any other activity under the terms of the Agreement, are: 
 
 

 
LOCAL AGENCY:          

         
         
Attention:        
Telephone Number(s):       
FAX Number:        
E-mail         

 
 STATE:  Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
    Grants Management Unit, Attn: Megan Esfandiary 
    P. O. Box 944246 
    Sacramento, California 94244-2460 
    PHONE: (916) 653-3649 
     
 
12. PURPOSE: Any project to be funded hereunder must be intended to specifically assist 

LOCAL AGENCY to organize, train, and/or equip local firefighting forces in the 
aforementioned rural area and community to prevent or suppress fires which threaten life, 
resources, and/or improvements within the area of operation of LOCAL AGENCY. 

 
13. COMBINING: In the event funds are paid for two or more separate, but closely related 

projects, the 50/50 cost-sharing formula will be applied to the total cost of such combined 
projects. 

 
14. OVERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project exceeds the estimate of 

costs upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request additional funds 
to cover the Agreement share of the amount exceeded.  However, there is no assurance 
that any such funds are, or may be, available for reimbursement.  Any increase in funding 
will require an amendment. 

 
15. UNDERRUNS: In the event that the total cost of a funded project is less than the estimate 

of costs upon which this Agreement is made, LOCAL AGENCY may request that 
additional eligible projects/items be approved by STATE for Agreement funding.  
However, there is no assurance that any such approval will be funded.  Approval of 
additional projects/items, not listed on the Proposed Project application, made by STATE, 
will be in writing and will require an amendment. 

 
16. FEDERAL INTEREST IN EQUIPMENT: The Federal Government has a vested interest in 

any item purchased with VFA funding in excess of $5,000 regardless of the length of this 
Agreement, until such time as the fair market value is less than $5,000.  The VFA 
percentage used to purchase the equipment will be applied to the sale price and recovered 
for the Government during the sale.  This percentage will remain the same even following 
depreciation.  The Federal Government may not have to be reimbursed if the disposal sale 
amounts to a fair market value of less than $5,000.  LOCAL AGENCY will notify STATE 
of the disposal of such items. 
  













 
 

 

Staff Report to City Council 

 
 

 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report November 13, 2019 Culver Street Phase II ɀ Design and Project Management 
 

 

 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 13, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Chris J. Clardy, Community Services Director 

Subject: Culver Street Phase II – Design and Project Management 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: ã Un-funded: Amount:  $30,272 Fund(s):  357 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
an agreement with GHD Engineering for the design and project management of Culver Street Phase 
II in an amount not to exceed $30,272. 

 

Summary/Background 
 

On May 10, 2017 the City Council adopted Resolution 17-2017 authorizing the City Manager to approve 

a proposal by Coastland Engineering for developing the City’s first Pavement Management Plan (PMP). 

The PMP systematically evaluates the current pavement conditions as well as project future pavement 

conditions to assist in prioritizing paving projects for all the City’s maintained streets.  
 

On May 23, 2018 City Council adopted the 2019-2020 fiscal year budgets which included TBD 

pavement projects. The PMP assigned this portion of Culver Street (West Oak Street to West Church 

Street) a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of 22 and 26 placing it in the failed category. The current 

pavement is 1 inch to 1 ½ inches of asphalt/asphalt patch on top of native soil. 
 

City staff solicited City contracted engineering firm, GHD, for a cost proposal for a design of Culver 

Street - Phase II (West Oak Street to West Church Street). The provided proposal scope of work would 

include; project management and agency coordination, topographic survey, plans specifications and 

engineers estimate, bid coordination and construction support. The project is estimated to go out to bid 

the first week of February 2020 and start construction by March 2020.  
  

Staff recommends City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with GHD for 

the design and project management of Culver Street – Phase II in an amount not to exceed $30,272 

which includes a 10% contingency above the cost estimate. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 
 

The agreement for services with GHD Engineering is requested in an amount not to exceed $30,272 

from fund 357. 
 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2019 

2. Proposal 

Item 6F

51







Item 6F

54



Item 6F

55









3 City of Colfax 
Staff Report , 2019 Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

the 2002 Council. That would make sense if, for example, there was disagreement between the 2002 

Council members over who should next sit as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem.  

 Aside from being a literal interpretation of the language selected, this narrow interpretation is 

consistent with the general proposition that a Council cannot bind future Councils on matters of policy. 

Each Council has the right to decide which of its members will serve as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. 

The law only requires that those offices be filled. How those offices are filled is a matter of Council 

policy. 

 On the other hand, if ñthis Councilò is broadly interpreted to mean ñthe Colfax City Councilò, then the 

policy adopted in 2002 is arguably intended to apply to future Councils. It has apparently been 

followed by most Councils after 2002, with limited exception. Again, however, it is only a policy, not 

a binding ordinance.  

 The rotation ñaccording to seniorityò also injects ambiguity into the process. If seniority was the only 

criteria, then the two Council members with the longest tenure would continue to rotate into and out of 

the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. That would not make sense and would not be in keeping with Colfaxôs 

typical practice. 

 ñSeniorityò can refer to the total amount of time a member of the Council sits if, for example, a 

Council member is elected to successive terms. It can also refer to the amount of time a member sits 

since his or her most recent election. The latter is how the Council has historically interpreted 

ñseniorityò. 

Fiscal Impact:  

None 



City of Colfax 1 

Resolution __-2019  Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution ̄  __-2019 

APPROVING ADOPTING A POLICY FOR ANNUAL SELECTION OF MAYOR AND 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

WHEREAS, The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December 

usually involves rotating the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem chairs; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code §36801 dictates what must be done in that a Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem must be selected but it does not dictate how the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are 

selected; and 

WHEREAS, the Colfax City Council requested the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem selection 

policy update; and 

WHEREAS, staff provided an updated policy at the September 25th and received policy 

modifications reflected in the attached Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem Selection Policy.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that 

the attached to this Resolution reflects the City Colfax Council policy changes request and are hereby 

approved and adopted by the City Council. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY 

ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 

day of  2019, by the following vote of the Council:

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________ 

Joe Fatula, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 



The Council’s general policy is that every member should have the opportunity to rotate into and 

serve as Mayor Pro Tem and Mayor for succeeding one-year terms in each position. The Council 

reserves discretion to vary from this policy and the procedures it establishes.  

The Council will choose one of its members as Mayor and one of its members as Mayor Pro Tem 

as follows: 

A. At the first regular Council meeting in December of each year during which there

is no general election, the Council shall, by majority vote of a quorum present and voting, select 

its Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for the ensuing calendar year.  

B. In years during which there is an election of members of the Council, the

selection shall be made following the declaration of the election results and installation of the 

members elected. That selection will be made at the first regular Council meeting in December 

provided, however, that if for any reason the declaration of election results is delayed beyond the 

first meeting in December, then the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem shall be made at the 

meeting at which the declaration of election results is made, and after the declaration and 

installation of the members elected. 

This is the process the Council will follow and the factors it will consider each time a Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem is selected: 

A. The Mayor Pro Tem shall be seated as Mayor.

B. The Council Member with the longest tenure on the Council since his/her most

recent election or his/her appointment, excluding the outgoing Mayor, shall be seated as Mayor 

Pro Tem. The outgoing Mayor shall be fourth in line for selectionshall by majority vote of a 

quorum present and voting select one of its members to serve as Mayor Pro Tem.  

C. If multiple Council members have equal tenure, the selection of Mayor Pro Tem

shall be based upon the number of votes each such Council member received at his/her most 

recent election, in descending order. In this case, appointees shall be deemed to have the lowest 

number of votes. 

DC. Council members who have served as Mayor Pro Tem or Mayor since their

most recent election or appointment to the Council shall serve as Mayor Pro Tem after 

Council Members who have not served in either position. 

D. The public shall be invited to comment on the selection of Mayor and Mayor

Pro Tem before a vote of the Council on either office is taken. 







CITY COUNCILôS FINDINGS AND ORDER  

COLFAX NET VARIANCE 

AFTER APRIL 24, 2019 AND SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

(Colfax Municipal Code §§1.28.070; 17.40.070G) 

Project Title:  Colfax Net Setback Variance 

Applicant/Owner: Corey Juchau/Robert Amick 

Location: Sierra Sky Court 

Assessorôs Parcel #: 100-100-030

The application by ColfaxNet for a variance to allow a reduced setback on the above-referenced 

parcel came on regularly for hearing on April 24, 2019. The City Council closed the public 

hearing at the conclusion of public testimony on April 24, 2019 and  continued the item to the 

regular May 22, 2019 City Council meeting to allow the applicant to provide additional 

information and to identify other available alternatives. The application was placed on the May 

22, 2019 regular City Council meeting agenda but was pulled off that agenda at the applicantôs 

request and continued to the June 26, 2019 regular City Council meeting. The application was 

pulled from the June 26, 2019 regular Council meeting agenda at the request of the applicant and 

a neighbor, Mr. Swick, to allow them to negotiate an alternative to the requested variance and 

was continued to the July 24, 2019 regular City Council meeting. The application was pulled 

from the July 24, 2019 regular City Council meeting agenda at the request of the applicant but 

not continued to a specific date, anticipating that a negotiated resolution would ensue. The 

application was duly and properly re-noticed for the September 25, 2019 regular City Council 

meeting for Council decision.  

Mayor Fatula recused himself, was not present for any hearing, meeting or discussion regarding 

this application and did not participate in making the Councilôs decision. 

Although the public hearing was closed on April 24, 2019, the Council reopened the public 

hearing to allow up to ten proponents and ten opponents of this variance application to provide 

additional testimony, to allow the applicant to make an oral rebuttal as allowed by Colfax 

Municipal Code §1.28.040 B and the hearing procedures listed on the Councilôs agenda, and to 

formally receive additional written information submitted after the April 24, 2019 public hearing. 

The additional written information received and considered by the Council after the April 24, 

2019 public hearing included the staff report for the  September 25, 2019 public hearing, 

Attachments 1 through 9, inclusive, to the staff report for the September 25, 2019 meeting, an 

email dated September 24, 2019 from Dwayne Armstrong/Dacomm, a September 24, 2019 letter 

from R. Monti Reynolds to the City Council, a September 24, 2019 letter from Ken & Cheri 

Wall to the Council and five color photographs of the project site submitted at the September 25, 

2019 meeting.  

64







2 City of Colfax 
Staff Report , 2019 Proposed Location for the Colfax Skate Park 

Several sites have been proposed for a Skate Park and each has been found not to be feasible. After years 

of considering sites and discussing options, the site next to the Colfax Splash Park seems to be the most 

plausible place to locate the Skate Park.  It could be a great addition to the activities already offered at 

the park: ball field, playground and Splash Park.  One drawback to this location is that it is a little out of 

the way and could allow kids possibly to be more mischievous. This issue would be mitigated by extra 

Sheriff Patrols, volunteer involvement, and a safety fence.  

Staff recommends City Council approve locating the Colfax Skate Park adjacent to the Splash Park. 

Fiscal Impacts:   

The Colfax Skate Park funds will come from donations, County Parks Mitigation Fees, and contractor 

sponsors. 

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2019

2. Maintenance and Law Enforcement Comparisons for Pool vs. Skate Park

3. Noise Study and Maintenance Overview

4. Skate Park 500’ Survey Ring Image

5. Auburn Aquatics Budget History





Maintenance and Law Enforcement comparisons for Pool VS. Skate Park 

The below information I gathered from two locations near Colfax. Both have a pool and a skatepark in 

their Park and Recreation District. I spoke with Mike Busse, Public Works Director of Operations for the 

City of Grass Valley and Kahl Muscott, District Administrator Auburn Area Recreation and Park District. 

Law Enforcement information was provided by Captain Steve Johnson - Grass Valley Police Department 

and Lt. Victor Pecoraro from the Auburn Police Department.  

The red lettering is additional notes by me, black lettering is what information was sent to me. 

Skatepark info: 

Grass Valley Skatepark 

Grass Valley SKATEPARK, based on one person at $20 dollars and hour 

ω Approx. 5 hrs/week blowing out and removing trash $100

ω Approx. 2 hrs/week removing unauthorized/left behind equipment $40

ω Approx. 1 hr/week removing graffiti and stickers $20

ω Ongoing problems with vandalizing security fence, hard to keep up with repair or cost (Note:

Their fence is a high fence making it harder to go over for after hour use, so people bend the metal

fence open. My suggestion is a smaller 3-foot fence and camera system. Grass Valley has no cameras.

The 3-foot fence, yes, ƛǘΩǎ easy to get over and no damage to cross, but it also provides a hard line or

barrier that if crossed after hours gives us all the reason to write a citation for the violation. Camera

system that is accessible at all hours with an IP address, can be monitored by not only law enforcement

but concerned citizens can look at the camera system as well for extra eyes.)

ω During winter, skatepark is often closed due to weather, snow removal and drain cleaning (

weather permitting, the skatepark provides year-round recreation. The pool is seasonal and only open

for swim team on off season and summers only)

Sergeant Conners, 

Our skate park is in a fairly remote and wooded area of one of our parks (Colfax Skatepark is not even as 

remote as the Grass Valley location. To check on the park for Grass Valley PD, they must walk into the 

recreation park to get to the skatepark, the Colfax Park will be easily accessible by patrol unit and can be 

easily seen just driving by).  In general, it has not been a significant draw on law enforcement resources.  

By in large, they police themselves at the skate park and trouble makers are excluded by other skaters.  

69





Abbreviations from top to bottom (11-46R: Suicide report, 415P: Physical fight, 594R: Vandalism report, 

AAA: Allied Agency Assist, AMC: Auburn Municipal Code, AREA: Area check, EXPAT: Extra Patrols 

(almost half of the calls was EXTRA, this is officer initiated of doing extra patrols in the area), FOLLOW: 

Follow up, H&S: Drugs, LINFO: Law Information, NOISE: noise (only 8 for the year), PC: Penal Code, 

PROP: Property, SAL Special Event, SC: Suspicious Circs, SP: Suspicious Person, SS: Suspicious Subject, 

VEH: Vehcile, W911: wireless 911, WARR: Warrant, WELFAR: Welfare Check. 

Pool information: 

For Auburn: 

Please see attached report for Auburn Rec District for Pool costs. This was an aquatic 6-year study on 

cost. 2019 they lost $116,000 going over budget, they take care of two pools meadow vista and 

Auburn, but they show the individual costs for both.  

Grass Valley: 

This is what I received from Grass Valley on maintenance and the chemicals they buy ever year. They did 

not have a breakdown like Auburn. 

POOL 

ω Approx. 7 hrs/week general maintenance $140

ω Biannual 100 hrs/week maintenance with pool closed $2000

ω Approx. chemical useage per month

o 150 gals chlorine

o 25 gals muriatic acid

o 100 lbs sodium bicarbonate

o 50 lbs calcium chloride

o 10-15 lbs cyanuric acid

ω Test kit for chemicals approx. $250/year

ω Approx. 6 man-hours/month for miscellaneous call-outs $180

ω Showers/restrooms cleaned by pool managers daily, and by City staff every other weekend

during open swim (20 hrs/month)

ω During this last year, we have spent approx. $50,000 on new pool heaters

Depending on the event at the pool, Grass Valley also have to staff and fund 1 to 5 lifeguards. 







500’ SURVEY RING IMAGE 

Attachment 4

74

















¶ Lost Revenue

¶ Labor Expenditure

Please return this form to City Hall or email a completed copy to: city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov 

Deadline to submit the information is 11/12/2019. 

Version 1











Staff Report to City Council 

City of Colfax 1 

Staff Report November 13, 2019 Commercial Cannabis Microbusiness 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 13, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Alfred “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

Subject: Commercial Cannabis Microbusiness 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A: Õ  Funded: Un-funded: Amount: Fund(s): 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss whether to expand the scope of permissible commercial cannabis 

activities in Colfax and provide direction to staff. 

Summary/Background: 

Summary. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to allow the City Council to discuss and determine whether to expand 

the scope of permissible commercial cannabis activities in Colfax. At present, the Council has authorized 

issuance of one medicinal cannabis license to Golden State Patient Care. The licensee asked the City to 

authorize issuance of a microbusiness cannabis license that will allow it to engage in additional 

commercial cannabis activities that can include cultivation, manufacturing, distribution and retail sales. 

The options generally available to Council are: 

1. Direct staff to develop a program for expanding retail cannabis activities in Colfax and

bring it to Council for approval. The program can include either all activities necessary for issuing 

cannabis microbusiness licenses, which require three of the four primary retail cannabis activities 

(cultivation, manufacturing, distribution and retail sales) to be conducted on the same premises, or it can 

include only limited additional commercial cannabis activities. 

2. Decide not to expand retail cannabis activities in Colfax and allow things to remain as

they are with only one permitted medicinal cannabis retailer. 

3. Defer discussion and direction to a future meeting.

4. Otherwise direct staff.

Item 9E

87





 

City of Colfax 3 

Staff Report November 13, 2019 Commercial Cannabis Microbusiness 
 

 

 

The fundamental impediment to issuing microbusiness licenses in Colfax is that they are not allowed 

under the City’s Municipal Code. Moreover, the primary regulation under which microbusinesses 

operate, 42 CCR §5500(a), requires a microbusiness licensee to engage in three of the following 

commercial cannabis activities: cultivation, manufacturing, distribution and retail sales. All cultivation, 

manufacturing, distribution, and retail activities performed by a licensee under a microbusiness license 

must occur on the same licensed premises. 
 

These are among the issues that will need to be addressed in order to permit a cannabis microbusiness: 

 

1. Ordinance 536, which provides for medicinal cannabis sales, will have to be amended to allow the 

additional activities. At present, Ordinance 536 prohibits the commercial manufacture, processing, 

storing, testing, labeling, sale, delivery, distribution or transportation of cannabis or cannabis products. 

See CMC 5.32.030. 

 

2. Adult use retail cannabis activities are not allowed in Colfax. The Council was very clear in its 

direction to allow only one medicinal cannabis dispensary. The current ordinances will have to be 

changed to allow adult use cannabis activities and define their scope.  

 

3. Ordinance 535 outlaws commercial cultivation of cannabis. See CMC 17.162.060, which incorporates 

cultivation in the definition of commercial cannabis activity. CMC 17.162.060 and Chapter 5.32 will 

have to be amended to allow limited commercial cannabis cultivation.  

 

4. The cannabis regulations the City adopted after Ordinances 535 and 536 do not address 

microbusinesses, cannabis cultivation, manufacture, retail cannabis stores or cannabis delivery. 

Regulations will have to be developed and adopted simultaneously with the changes to the City’s 

ordinance. This will include adopting an updated fee structure and enforcement process.  

 

5.  Colfax has limited staff and resources available to develop the comprehensive ordinances, regulations 

and enforcement mechanisms necessary to implement an expanded cannabis micro business program. 

The Council will have to consider either expanding its staff are retaining consultants to undertake the 

necessary effort. 
 

6.  Golden State Patient Care is presently the only permissible licensee. If the Council wants to expand 

the permissible scope of commercial cannabis activities, it may also want to consider reopening the 

application process to other potential licensees. 
 

Counsel is not bound to considering only the suggested cannabis microbusiness licensing program. It 

could, for example, expand the permissible scope of commercial cannabis activities to include different 

types of licenses without issuing “microbusiness” licenses. Doing so may allow for additional 

commercial cannabis activities without having to meet the strict requirements applicable to micro-

businesses. 
 

Staff will be available to provide additional information or answer Council’s questions. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   

N/A 

 

Item 9E





City of Colfax 

Resolution __-2019 

1 

City Funding Support for Winterfest Event 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution Ο __-2019 

 AUTHORIZING A $1000 DONATION TO COLFAX CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE, COORDINATORS OF THE 2019 WINTERFEST EVENT, AS THE 

CITY’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE SUCCESS OF THE WINTERFEST 2019 
EVENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Colfax traditionally donates $500 to support certain 

City- wide events each year; and, 

WHEREAS, the City requires the organizer to request the funding amount and how the money 

will be spent; and, 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Chamber of Commerce, organizers of the 2019 Winterfest event, have 
requested $1000 as the City’s contribution to the success of the event which is scheduled for 
December 14th, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax, approves a 
donation of $1000 to Colfax Chamber of Commerce, as the City’s contribution to the success of the 
Winterfest event in 2019. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 13th of November 2019 by the 
following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 
 

 

 

Joe Fatula, Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 
 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Item 9F

91


	000 - Agenda
	00- Agenda 11-13-19
	00 - Agenda Signature pg

	Agenda Draft 3
	05A - PH Mitigation Fees
	SR Mitigation Fees 10.23.19
	Reso Annual Mitigation Fee Report
	Att 2 - Annual AB1600 Report 2019
	Att 3 - Mitigation Fees by LandUse and Type

	06A - Signed Minutes 9-25
	City Council 9-25-19 Minutes
	Signature Page

	06B - Cash Summary Sept 2019
	Staff Report Cash Summary - Sept
	SR Attachments 1a-1c
	SR Attachments 2a-2d

	06C - Quarterly Investment Report QE Sept 2019
	SR 2019-20 QE 09.30.19
	SR Attachment 1 -Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool
	SR Attachment 2 -PMIA LAIF Performance Report
	SR Attachment 3 -PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

	06D - VFA Grant Acceptance
	SR Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance
	Reso Fire Equipment Grant Acceptance
	AGREEMENT 7FG19014
	E-mail


	06E - Adoption of Caltrans
	SR Adoption of Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual
	Reso Adoption of Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual Correct

	06F - Culver St Phase II
	SR 2019 Culver Street Phase II - Design
	Reso Culver Street Phase II - Design
	Attachment

	06G - Adopt Policy for Mayor-Pro Tem
	SR Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem Policy
	Reso Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem Policy
	Reso Attachment Policy Rev 2

	09A - Denial of Colfax Net Variance Request
	Colfax Net Variance Application Denial SR
	Colfax Net Variance Application Denial Resolution
	Colfax Net Variance Application Denial Resolution Findings Attachment

	09B - Proposed Skatepark Location
	SR Skate Park Support Resolution
	Reso Skate Park Location and Fundraising Authorization
	Att 2 - Maintenance and law Enforcement Comparisons Pool VS Skate Park
	Att 3 - Noise study and Maintenance Overview
	Att 4 - Skate Park 500' Survey Ring Image
	Att 5 - Auburn Aquatics Budget History

	09C - PG&E Loss Memorandum
	SR PGE Loss Memorandum
	Constituent Letter Version 1
	Constituent Letter Version 2

	09D - Meeting Time Change
	Regular Meeting Time Change - SR
	Resolution 32-2019 Changing time for meeting from 7pm to 6pm

	09E - Commercial Cannabis Microbusiness
	09F - Winterfest Donation
	Winterfest Donation Staff Report
	Winterfest Donation Resolution





